
 
  

CITY OF LAWNDALE 
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California 90260 

Phone (310) 973-3200 – www.lawndalecity.org 
 

AGENDA 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, January 19, 2021 - 6:30 p.m. 
Lawndale City Hall Council Chamber 

14717 Burin Avenue 
 

* COVID-19 NOTICE * 
 
How to observe the Meeting:  
To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members of the public 
can observe the meeting on YouTube “Lawndale CityTV”, the City Website, or Lawndale Community 
Cable Television on Spectrum & Frontier Channel 3. 
 
How to submit Public Comment:  
Members of the public may provide public comment by sending comments to the Clerk by email at 
cityclerk@lawndalecity.org.  Please submit your written comments as early as possible, preferably prior 
to the start of the meeting or if you are unable to email, please call the City Clerk's Office at (310) 973-
3213 by 5:30 p.m. on the date of the meeting. Email comments must identify the Agenda Item Number 
in the subject line of the email.  The public comment period will close once the public comment time for 
the agenda item has concluded. The comments will be entered into the record and provided to the 
Council. All comments should be a maximum of 500 words, which corresponds to approximately 3 
minutes of speaking time.  Please see the Temporary eComment Policy for Public Meetings. 
 
Copies of this Agenda packet may be obtained prior to the meeting outside of the Lawndale City Hall foyer 
or on the City Website.  Interested parties may contact the City Clerk Department at (310) 973-3213 for 
clarification regarding individual agenda items. 
 

This Agenda is subject to revision up to 72 hours before the meeting. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

B. CEREMONIALS (Flag Salute) 
 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT 
 

D. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (Public Comments) 
 

E. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL 
 

F. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Items 1 through 7, will be considered and acted upon under one motion unless a City Councilmember 
removes individual items for further City Council consideration or explanation. 

 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCfzabQru02YprD2xs5FC2Ow
http://192.168.10.14/CablecastPublicSite/watch/1?channel=3
mailto:cityclerk@lawndalecity.org
http://www.lawndalecity.org/ASSETS/PDF/Corona/City%20of%20Lawndale%20-%20eComment%20Policy.pdf
http://www.lawndalecity.org/HTML/DEPTHTML/CCLERK/CCAgendasMinutes.htm


Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
January 19, 2021 
Page 2 

1. Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2020
Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file the Quarterly Investment Report
for the quarter ended December 31, 2020.

2. Disposal of Surplus Property – Community Services Department 2006 Saturn Vue
Hybrid Minivan
Recommendation: that the City Council approve the sale of the 2006 Saturn Vue Hybrid
Minivan via public auction to be facilitated by Ken Porter Auctions in Carson, California.

3. First Amendment to the CleanStreet Sweeping Service Agreement
Recommendation: that the City Council approve the First Amendment to the Sweeping
Service Agreement with CleanStreet to revise the contract term to three years for a
contract expiration date of February 28, 2023.

4. Statement of Costs for Property located at 14412 Mansel Ave.
Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file the report.

5. Accounts Payable Register
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2101-001, authorizing
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $1,656,131.34.

6. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – December 7, 2020
Recommendation: that the City Council approve.

7. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Special Meeting – January 11, 2021
Recommendation: that the City Council approve.

G. PUBLIC HEARING

8. Selection of Projects for the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 (47th Program Year) of the
Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG)
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) conduct a Public Hearing to receive testimony
regarding the Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG); (b) adopt the
Fiscal Year 2021-2022 budget for the CDBG Program; (c) adopt Resolution No. CC-
2102-002, approving the City’s participation in the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 CDBG
Program

H. ADMINISTRATION

9. City of Lawndale Website Redesign
Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file the report and demonstration.

10. Authorize the Purchase and Installation of Touchless Automatic Sliding Doors at
Various City Facilities
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) authorize the purchase of touchless automatic
sliding doors from Vortex Industries for an amount not-to-exceed $34,000 ($33,243.92
proposed cost plus $756.08 contingency); and (b) authorize the General Fund budget

(Note: This item will need to be pulled should the property owner or anyone else with an interest in the property contest the statement)



Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
January 19, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 

 

appropriation transfer of $34,000 from County Sheriff’s Department Services to Building 
Improvements. 
 

11. City Council Subcommittees 
Recommendation: that the City Council review the list of subcommittees and direct staff 
on their dissolution, continuation due the need to complete outstanding or future tasks, 
modify the focus or scope of the current subcommittee, and where appropriate 
appointment, replacement, or modification of members.  
 

12. Safe and Sane Fireworks Sales 
Recommendation: that the City Council discuss the future of safe and sane fireworks sales 
in Lawndale and provide direction to staff as appropriate. 

 
13. Filling the Vacancy in the Office of City Clerk 

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) interview the applicants and determine who 
to appoint to the Office of City Clerk (b) direct staff to fill in the blank in Resolution No. 
CC-2101-03 Filling a Vacancy in the Office of City Clerk by Appointment with the 
appointees’ name and (c) adopt the Resolution as amended.  
 

I. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 
 

J. ITEMS FROM CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 
 

14. Mayor/City Councilmembers Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
 

K. CLOSED SESSION 
 
15. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation 

The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.9(d) (1), to confer with legal counsel regarding litigation to which the City is a 
party.  The title of such litigation is as follows: Lawndale vs. Metropolitan Transportation 
Authority; Case Number 20STCP02875; L.A. County Superior Court. 
 

16. Public Employee Appointment 
The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54957(b), to consider the appointment of an employee to the position of City Attorney. 
 

L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council will be held at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, 
February 1, 2021 in the Lawndale City Hall council chamber, 14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, 
California. 
 

It is the intention of the City of Lawndale to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in 
all respects.  If, as an attendee or a participant at this meeting, you will need special assistance beyond 
what is normally provided, we will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable manner.  Please 
contact the City Clerk Department (310) 973-3213 prior to the meeting to inform us of your particular 



Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
January 19, 2021 
Page 4 
 
 

 

needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible.  Please advise us at that time if you will need 
accommodations to attend or participate in meetings on a regular basis. 
 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the Agenda 
for the regular meeting of the City Council to be held on January 19, 2021 was posted not less 
than 72 hours prior to the meeting. 

 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Matthew Ceballos, Assistant City Clerk 



1











2





3









4











5

























MINUTES OF THE 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

    December 7, 2020 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Mayor Pullen-Miles called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall council chamber,
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California.

Councilmembers Present:  Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor Pro Tem Bernadette Suarez,
Councilmember Pat Kearney, Councilmember Daniel Reid, 
Councilmember James Osborne, Councilmember-elect Rhonda 
Hofmann-Gorman, Councilmember-elect Sirley Cuevas 

Other Participants: City Manager Kevin M. Chun, City Attorney Tiffany J. Israel, Los 
Angeles County Sheriff's Department Lieutenant Leo, Community 
Services Director Mike Estes, Assistant to the City 
Manager/Human Resources Director Raylette Felton, Municipal 
Services Director Michael Reyes, Finance Director Marla 
Pendleton, Community Development Director Sean Moore, 
Assistant City Clerk Matthew Ceballos, Interim Public Works 
Director Lea Reis  

B. CEREMONIALS

Councilmember Daniel Reid led the flag salute.

C. PRESENTATION

1. James Osborne – Outgoing Member of the City Council

Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles and the City Council presented the Service Recognition Plaque for 
12 years of dedicated service and valuable contributions to outgoing councilmember, James 
Osborne. 

Each Councilmember congratulated, praised and wished James Osborne well. 

Councilmember Osborne appreciated all comments, colleagues and past members then spoke 
about his time as the Councilmember of Lawndale. Mr. Osborne went on contributing his 
experience and knowledge to late councilmember Larry Rudolph, late Charmaine Doty, late 
Pastor Chris Beamer, Alizabeth Bigness, Bob and Janice Gibbons, Lenore Bemis, Sandy Suarez, 
Bonnie Coronado, Shirley Rudolph, Marco Sandoval and City Staff.  

Lawndale Elementary School district board president Bonnie Coronado and Superintendent read 
verbatim deep gratitude and wished him the best in his future endeavors  

Centinela Valley Union High School District Dr. Gregory O’Brian, behalf of the board of 
education, expressed appreciation of Mr. Osborne’s many years of service and partnership. 

6



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
December 07, 2020 
Page 2 
 
 

Amanda Cunningham, representing the Office of Assemblywoman Autumn Burke, read a 
resolution of December 7, 2020 highlighting all of James Osborne’s achievements. 
 
 
2. Dan Reid – Outgoing Member of the City Council 
 
Mayor Pullen-Miles highlight all of the subcommittees councilmember Dan Reid represented 
and presented him with a plaque for six years of service to Lawndale City Council. 
 
All Councilmembers commended Mr. Reid for the empathetic commitment to the Lawndale 
Community and the City Council.  
 
Representatives of Lawndale Elementary School District, Centinela Valley Union High School 
District, and Office of Assemblywoman Autumn Burke, delivered Recognition Certificates and 
presented Resolutions emphasizing his service to the community of Lawndale.  
 

D. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT 
 
Lieutenant Leo applauded the outgoing Councilmembers for their support then summarized the 
recent law enforcement activities. 
 
Councilmember Pat Kearney commended the enforcement officers for securing 8 weapons in 
November. 
 

E. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA  
 

Dave, Lawndale Resident, inquired if street sweeping will be terminated through stay at home 
orders and suggested it should be cancelled due to most residents staying home.  
 

F. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL 
 
No comments provided. 

 
G. CONSENT CALENDAR  

 
3. Approval of Final Parcel Map No. 83092 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve the final Parcel Map 83092. 
 

4. Federally Funded Employment and Job Training – South Bay Workforce  
Investment Board Activities Summary 
Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file the report. 

 
5. Youth Advisory Committee (YAC) Appointments 

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the Mayor’s appointments by 
directing staff to insert the appointees’ names in Section 1 of Resolution No. CC-2012-
065, and (b) adopt the Resolution as amended.  
 

6. Accounts Payable Register 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
December 07, 2020 
Page 3 
 
 

Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2012-064, authorizing 
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $843,374.36 

 
7. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – November 16, 2020 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 

REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
 
8. Minutes of the Successor Agency Meeting – June 3, 2020 

Recommendation: that the Board approves. 
 
9. Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) 21-22 and the Administrative 

Budget for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
Recommendation: that the Successor Agency approve and direct staff to submit to the 
Los Angeles County Consolidated Oversight Board and California Department of 
Finance (DOF) the ROPS 21-22 and Administrative Budget FY 2021-22, and authorize 
staff to make any changes requested by the DOF. 
 

A motion by Councilmember Reid to approve the consent calendar was seconded by 
Councilmember Kearney and carried by a vote of 5-0 
 

H. ADMINISTRATION 
 
10. Certification of Election Results - General Municipal Election 2020 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve the Election Official’s Certificate of 
Canvass and adopt Resolution No. CC-2012-066, declaring the results of the 2020 
Lawndale General Municipal Election. 
 

Assistant City Clerk Matthew Ceballos reported on the Certification of Results for the General 
Municipal Election 2020. 
 
A motion by Councilmember Osborne approve the Election Official’s Certificate of 
Canvass and adopt Resolution No. CC-2012-066, declaring the results of the 2020 Lawndale 
General Municipal Election, was seconded by Councilmember Kearney and carried by a 
vote of 5-0. 
 
11. Installation of Elected Officials 

The newly elected members of the City Council will take the oath of allegiance and be 
seated. 

 
Assistant City Clerk Matthew Ceballos administered the oath of allegiance to elected Mayor 
Robert Pullen-Miles 

 
Assistant City Clerk Matthew Ceballos administered the oath of allegiance to elected 
Councilmember Rhonda Hofmann-Gorman. 
 
Mr. Ray Cordova, Chair of South County Labor administered the Oath of Office to elected 
Councilmember Sirley Cuevas.            



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
December 07, 2020 
Page 4 

Assistant City Clerk Matthew Ceballos conducted a roll call for the new Lawndale City Council. 

Councilmembers Present:  Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor Pro Tem Bernadette Suarez, 
Councilmember Pat Kearney, Councilmember Rhonda Hofmann-
Gorman, Councilmember Sirley Cuevas 

12. Annual Reorganization of the City Council
Recommendation: that the City Council appoint one of its members to serve as Mayor
Pro Tem for a term beginning on January 1, 2021 and ending on December 31, 2021.

Mayor Pro Tem Suarez nominated Councilmember Pat Kearney to serve as Mayor Pro Tem. 

Councilmember Rhonda Hofmann-Gorman concurred. 

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Suarez appoint Councilmember Pat Kearney  to serve as 
Mayor Pro Tem for a term beginning on January 1, 2021 and ending on December 31, 
2021, was seconded by Councilmember Hofmann-Gorman and carried by a vote of 4-0 
with 1 abstention being Councilmember Kearney. 

13. City Representatives to Intergovernmental Agency boards
Recommendation: that Mayor Pullen-Miles (a) appoint delegates and alternates to the
intergovernmental agencies listed in Resolution No. CC-2012-067; (b) that the City
Council confirm the Mayor’s appointments by directing staff to amend Section 1 of the
Resolution by filling in the names of the Mayor’s appointees; and (c) that the City Council
adopt the Resolution as amended.

At this time the Mayor and City Council came to a consensus on the following appointments: 

California Contract Cities Association, Board of Directors 
Representatives:  delegate Pat Kearney, alternate Robert Pullen-Miles and Rhonda Hofmann-
Gorman. 
California Joint Powers Insurance Authority, Board of Directors 
Representatives:  delegate Robert Pullen-Miles, alternate Rhonda Hofmann-Gorman. 
Centinela Youth Services, Board of Directors 
Representative:  delegate Bernadette Suarez, alternate not allowed 
County Sanitation District No 5 of Los Angeles County, Board of Directors 
Representatives:  delegate Robert Pullen-Miles, alternate Pat Kearney 
League of California Cities, Los Angeles County Chapter 
Representatives:  delegate Sirley Cuevas, alternate Robert Pullen-Miles 
South Bay Cities Council of Governments, Board of Directors 
Representatives:  delegate Bernadette Suarez, alternates Robert Pullen-Miles and Sirley Cuevas. 

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Suarez to confirm the Mayor's appointments by directing staff 
to amend Section 1 of the resolution by filling in the names of the mayor's appointees and 
adopt the resolution as amended was seconded by Councilmember Kearney and carried by a 
vote of 5-0. 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
December 07, 2020 
Page 5 

14. Vacancy in the Office of City Clerk – Options
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) commence the process to appoint someone to
fill the vacancy of the City Clerk for the remainder of the term, which is approximately
two years, and (b) approve the application and interview process as detailed in the staff
report and application, or direct staff as appropriate.

Assistant City Clerk Matthew Ceballos reported on the Vacancy in the Office of City Clerk – 
Options. 

A motion by Mayor Pullen-Miles to commence the process to appoint someone to fill the 
vacancy of the City Clerk for the remainder of the term, which is approximately two years, 
and approve the application and interview process as detailed in the staff report and 
application, was seconded by Councilmember Kearney and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

I. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

City Manager Kevin Chun reminded everyone the upcoming City Council meetings have been
cancelled due to the holidays and will resume on Tuesday, January 19. 2021. City Manager Chun
also reported the Angel Tree Lighting Event will be available via live streaming. Mr. Chun went on
commending the outgoing Councilmembers and applauding and welcoming the newly elected
members.

ITEMS FROM CITY COUNCILMEMBERS

15. Mayor/City Councilmembers Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events

Councilmember Rhonda Hofmann-Gorman encouraged anyone interested in learning about 
government and be a representative to apply for the City Clerk opening.  

Councilmember Sirley Cuevas thanked all of her supporters and looked forward to a successful 
term.  

Councilmember Kearney attended the Citizen’s Oversight Committee meeting, the 
Assemblywoman Autumn Burke’s “Drive-thru Operation Gobble”, and wished everyone a 
Merry Christmas and Happy New Year. Mr. Kearney went on acknowledging the U.S. Navy and 
Dan Reid for the history of the date December 7th. 

Mayor Pro Tem Suarez attended an emergency South Bay Cities Council of Governments 
meeting and welcomed the new Councilmembers. 

Mayor Pullen-Miles congratulated the newly seated Councilmembers, attended County 
Sanitation District No 5 of Los Angeles County meeting, and participated in the turkey giveaway 
from Assemblywoman Autumn Burke, he went on to wish everyone a safe holiday. 

J. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to conduct, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 7:22 p.m.



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
December 07, 2020 
Page 6 

_________________________________ 
Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
Matthew Ceballos, Assistant City Clerk 

Approved: 1/19/2021 



MINUTES OF THE 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING 

January 11, 2021 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Mayor Pullen-Miles called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. in the Lawndale Community Center,
14700 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California.

Councilmembers Present: Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor Pro Tem Pat Kearney,
Councilmember Bernadette Suarez, Councilmember Rhonda
Hofmann-Gorman, Councilmember Sirley Cuevas

Other Participants: City Manager Kevin M. Chun, Assistant to the City 
Manager/Human Resources Director Raylette Felton 

B. CEREMONIALS

Mayor Pro Tem Pat Kearney led the flag salute.

C. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

None.

D. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL

None.

E. CLOSED SESSION

At 9:06 a.m. the City Council entered into closed session.

1. Public Employee Appointment
The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section
54957(b), to consider the appointment of an employee to the position of City Attorney.

At 2:26 p.m. the City Council entered back into open session. 

City Manager Kevin M. Chun reported the City Council met in Closed Session to discuss 
the one item listed on the Closed Session agenda. The City Council unanimously voted to 
appoint Burke, Williams & Sorensen, LLP to the position of City Attorney contingent upon 
negotiations by staff regarding the rate proposal, provisions related to other cost of 
operations, and optional special counsel for special issues.  

F. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to conduct, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 2:27 p.m.

7



Minutes - City Council Special Meeting 
January 11, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Matthew Ceballos, Assistant City Clerk 
 
Approved: 1/19/2021 



8

















 

RESOLUTION NO. CC-2102-002 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 

APPROVING THE CITY’S COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 

 
 WHEREAS, on August 22, 1974, the President of the United States signed into law the 
Housing and Community Act of 1974 (Act); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the primary goals of Title I of the Act are the development of viable urban 
communities by providing decent housing and a suitable living environment and expanding 
economic opportunities, principally for persons of low- and moderate-income; and 
 
 WHEREAS, for the past 46 years the City of Lawndale (City) has participated in the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program which was established under the Act; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has received a planning estimate that $326,861 in CDBG funds will 
be available to the City for the 2021-2022 Fiscal Year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has posted information regarding the Community Development 
Block Grant Program as required by law and, after notice duly given as required by law, held a 
public hearing on January 19th, 2021 to consider approving the City’s proposed Community 
Development Block Grant Program for fiscal year 2021-2022, and evidence was heard and 
presented from all persons interested in affecting said proposal, from all persons protesting the same 
and from members of the City staff, and the City Council has reviewed, analyzed and studied said 
proposal. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, 
CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1. The CDBG projects, FY 2021-2022 funding allocations, as listed in the 
CDBG Funding Chart for FY 2021-2022 as set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated 
herein are hereby approved as the City’s CDBG Program for Fiscal Year 2021-2022. 
 
 SECTION 2. That the Mayor and/or City Manager are authorized and directed to submit the 
City’s proposed 2021-2022 planning documents to the Los Angeles County Development Authority 
(LACDA) setting forth the City’s proposed projects and funding allocations.  Should minor 
adjustments to the allocations vary from the figures contained herein and/or any amounts remaining 
unspent at the close of the preceding fiscal year, the City Manager is authorized to adjust funding to 
the approved eligible activities as necessary. 
 

SECTION 3. That the Mayor and/or City Manager are authorized to execute all necessary 
contracts and agreements with the Los Angeles County Development Authority (LACDA) and 



 

with each approved recipient/subrecipient of the CDBG program, together with any changes 
therein which may be approved by the City Manager. 

 
SECTION 4. This Resolution shall take effect from and after the date of passage and 

adoption. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of January, 2021 
 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale  ) 
 
I, Matthew Caballos, Assistant City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify 
that the City Council duly introduced the foregoing Resolution No. CC-2102-002 at its regular 
meeting held on the 19th day of January, 2021, and duly approved and adopted said resolution at 
its regular meeting held on the 19th day of January, 2021, by the following roll call vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor      
Pat Kearney, Mayor Pro Tem      
Bernadette Suarez      
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman      
Sirley Cuevas      

 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Matthew Ceballos, Assistant City Clerk 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Tiffany J. Israel, City Attorney 
 
 



 

 

 
EXHIBIT A  

CDBG FUNDING CHART FOR FY 2021-2022  
    

       
    

Project Title 

Allocated 
CDBG 
Funds 

Unallocated 
CDBG 

Funds(Prior 
Year) and 
Leveraged 

Funds Total 
        

Senior Activities (Max. 20%) 
$               
65,372.00               N/A  $                       65,372.00  

  Nutrition       
  
Street Projects        

Street 
Name: From:  To:  PCI: Estimated:  
169th Grevillea Hawthorne ~25   $  130,000.00  
Kingsdale 145th 147th ~24   $  130,000.00  
Total                                                           $  260,000.00 

 

$            
261,489.00  $           N/A 

     
$                      261,489.00 
 

TOTAL  
 $           
326,861.00  

 $            
N/A  $                     326,861.00 

    



CITY OF LAWNDALE 

14717 BURIN AVENUE, LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 90260 
PHONE (310) 973-3200 + www.lawndalecity.org 

DATE: January 19, 2021 

TO: 

FROM: 

PREPARED BY: 

SUBJECT: 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 

Kevin M. Chun, City Manage1 

Matthew Ceballos, Assistant City Clerk 

City of Lawndale Website Redesign 

BACKGROUND 

At the March 2, 2020 City Council meeting, the City Council approved a Contract Services 
Agreement with Intrado Interactive Services Corporation for a website redesign and ongoing hosting, 
maintenance, support, and security services for a five (5) year term. 

From that time the staff has been working with Intrado Interactive Services to redesign and implement 
a new City website to resolve the following issues of the current site: 

• Lack of Visual Appeal
• Difficult Website Navigation

• Plain Navigation Buttons
• Umecognizable Search Function

• Difficult Content Management System

• Outdated Software

STAFF REVIEW 

After the completing the following stages of Design, Content Migration, User Integration, User 
Acceptance Testing, SSL Ce1iification, and Training, staff is now ready for the Deployment phase. 

The new website is set to "go live" at 8 a.m. on Wednesday January 20, 2021. 

The key improvements made to the website are as follows: 

• Modern Design

• User-friendly features
• Security

• Interactivity

• Comprehensive Content Migration and Integrated Services

• Easy Backend Process for City Staff

Page 1 of 2 
9





10





11





12



13



City Council Meeting- January 19, 2021 
Filling the Vacancy in the Office of City Clerk 

City Council may choose to ask these three questions of the applicant and/or may ask other questions as 
desired. 

FORMAL APPOINTMENT 
Upon deciding who to appoint to fill the vacancy, the City Council should formalize that appointment 
by resolution. Staff has drafted such a resolution for your consideration. The resolution provides the 
following: 

• The appointed City Clerk will serve a term of office that will expire at the time the City Council
declares the results of the 2022 General Municipal Election.

• Upon being sworn into office, the appointed City Clerk will "possess all the rights and powers,
and will be subject to the same liabilities, duties, and obligations, of the City Clerk".

• As provided in the Municipal Code, the appointed City Clerk will receive compensation in the
amount of$350 per month.

• As provided by resolution, the appointed City Clerk will receive a flexible benefits allowance in
the same amount as provided to the Central Management Team.

Once the City Council adopts the resolution, the new City Clerk will immediately take and sign the oath 
of allegiance, and will be seated in the City Clerk's position in the City Council Chamber. 

If, however, the City Council prefers to take more time to decide on the appointment, City Council 
should consider the fact that the legal deadline to appoint or call for a Special Election to fill the vacancy 
is February 5, 2021. 

LEGAL REVIEW 

The City Attorney's office has reviewed Resolution No. CC-2101-03 and has approved it as to form. 

FISCAL IMP ACT 

None. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council interview the applicants and determine who to appoint to the 
Office of City Clerk. Upon making that determination, the City Council should direct staff to fill in 
the blanks in Resolution No. CC-2101-03 with the appointee's name and adopt the Resolution as 
amended. 

Attachments: 1) Application for Appointment to Fill the Vacant Office of City Clerk - received from: 
Christina Carroll, Erica Harbison, and Jessica Martinez 
2) Interview Questions/Notes
3) Resolution No. CC-2101-03

Page 2 of 2 





1/5/2021



CHRISTINA   CARROLL   
Lawndale,   CA   

To   apply   the   skills   that   I   have   acquired   to   accomplish   the   tasks   I   am   presented   with.   Eager   and   
willing   to   attain   new   skills   that   will   assist   me   with   future   employment   opportunities   and   life   
experiences.   
Authorized   to   work   in   the   US   for   any   employer   
  

WORK   EXPERIENCE   
    

Restaurant   Manager     Zislis   Group     Torrance,   CA     
August   2019   to   Present   
As   a   restaurant   manager   I   handle   all   cash   systems   including   drawers   and   safe.   Manage   the   
floor   and   day   to   day   duties   for   staff.   Make   sure   staff   are   up   to   date   on   company   policies   and   
health   code   procedures.   Handle   orders,   inventory,   scheduling,   invoices,   and   other   admin   work.   
Overall   make   sure   the   restaurant   is   running   accordingly.   
  

Hostess              Zislis   Group     Manhattan   Beach,   CA    February   2019   to   August   2019   
As   a   hostess   I   am   the   face   of   the   restaurant   and   the   main   goal   is   to   represent   the   restaurant   in   a   
respective   manner   by   greeting   guests   with   a   welcoming   smile   and   to   also   make   sure   they   have   
the   best   experience.   I   oversee   all   online   reservations   and   walk-ins   keeping   track   of   guest   
numbers   in   and   out.   I   assist   with   cleaning   tables,   expo,   serving,   and   making   sure   floors   and   
stairways   are   free   of   any   dangerous   spills   and   debris   for   the   safety   of   staff   and   guests.   
  

Manager          Belamar   Hotel     Manhattan   Beach,   CA    June   2018   to   June   2019   
As   the   manager   I   handle   payroll,   scheduling,   inventory,   and   orders.   Manage   the   floor   by   
assisting   the   team   and   guests   when   needed   and   also   making   sure   the   team   knows   menu   item   
details   to   our   daily   specials,   and   new   products.   Consistently   working   on   ways   for   the   team   to   be   
better   as   a   unit   and   also   sales   drives.   
  

Manager           Specialty's   Cafe     El   Segundo,   CA    February   2017   to   June   2018   
As   a   FOH   manager   I   setup   a   daily   deployment   plan   along   with   daily   shift   meetings   to   keep   the   
days   educational,   exciting,   and   all   about   guest   service.   Daily   counts   of   safe   and   registers   along   
with   controlling   waste   and   pars.   Due   to   it   being   a   training   store   I   am   consistently   training   in   all   
areas   of   the   store   such   as,   barista,   cashier,   expo,   dish,   baker,   and   more.   
  

Supervisor             HMS                   Los   Angeles,   CA     
December   2015   to   February   2017   
  

Maintain   a   working   knowledge   of   the   location   of   various   departments,   buildings,   access   routes,   
and   admitting   non   badge   requirements.   I   manage   three   concepts   and   continue   to   make   sure   



staff   are   following   safety   and   health   protocol.   I   deal   with   cash   handling   on   the   floor   and   safe   
drops.   Train   new   hires   for   FOH   and   BOH   for   all   three   locations   and   make   sure   current   staff   
know   the   menus   and   guest   service.   Assist   guests   whenever   needed   and   also   assist   surrounding   
restaurants   when   needed.   Enforce   procedural   rules   and   regulations;   ensure   the   personal   safety   
of   staff,   visitors,   and   property.   Conduct   knife   checks,   bar   counts,   time   keeping,   sales   recap,   and   
inventory.   
  

EDUCATION   
Bachelors   in   Studies/Sociology   CCSU    Hartford,   CT   September   2009   to   May   2010   
Associates   in   General   CCC     Hartford,   CT   
September   2005   to   May   2009   
  
  

CERTIFICATIONS   AND   LICENSES   
City   of   Lawndale   
Vice   Chairperson   Parks,   Recreations   and   Social   Services   March   2019   
  
  
  
  
    







 

 

EDUCATION 

Concordia University, Irvine                                                                                                                  May 2014 

Master of Arts in Education, Curriculum and Instruction –4.0                   Irvine, CA  

Accelerated, 1 year program 

 

California State University, Dominguez Hills May 2004 

California Preliminary Single Subject Teaching Credential, English – 3.94 Carson, CA 

California State University, Dominguez Hills                                                                                 May 2003 

Bachelor of Arts: English with emphasis on Literature (minor in Communications)– 3.36 Carson, CA 

 

WORK EXPERIENCE 

CVUHSD August 2005 – Present  

Teacher Lawndale, CA  

● Taught English at all high school grade levels from 9th grade through 12th grade in a diverse 

● population.  

● Taught 9th grade intervention course where students read between a 4th and 8th grade 

● level - worked with scaffolded curriculum that allowed for student growth in interpretation.  

● Taught regular and Honors 10th grade, and regular 11th grade and 12th grade infusing ERWC 

prompts and curriculum into regular curriculum to increase writing skills.  

●Currently teaching AP Literature and Composition working to increase test scores.  

●Currently teaching Advanced English and Public Health Honors for Biomedical Careers Academy - a 

specialized UCCI integrated curriculum. 

●Deliver curriculum to students and maintaining online grades and attendance 

●Communicating with parents and students regarding student progress and needs 

●Collaborating with colleagues to strengthen curriculum, implement common assessments, and 

examine data from those assessments 

●Coordinating the Biomedical Careers Academy including proper spending of grant monies, 

developing career pathways and including proper curriculum, designing and implementing student 

supports, completion of annual state report to ensure funding, and helping schedule and implement 

work-based learning opportunities for students 

 

Erica M. Harbison 

M.Ed. 

 

       

Lawndale, CA 90260 

                                       

 



 

KIWI Education August 2019 – Present 

Private Tutor Manhattan Beach, CA  

● Test-taking skills and practice - ISEE and SAT 

● Tutor students in academic subjects 

● Communicate with parents and company about student progress and needs 

● Study Skills 

MAAC S.C.O.P.E. Learning Center September 2004 – June 2005 

Private Tutor Los Angeles, CA  

● Delivered instruction in English for module-based continuation school.  

● Designed curriculum outside modules to increase connections, challenge students, and create 

opportunities for personal and scholastic growth.  

● Designed and implemented a Holocaust unit where there was a survivor guest speaker invited 

from the Museum of Tolerance. 

● Maintained current grades 

● Communicated with parents and students about student progress 

● Collaborated with administration and core teachers   

 

SKILLS 

Collaborative Google Apps (Docs, Slides, etc.) 

Adaptive Microsoft Word and PowerPoint 

Dependable Prezi 

Time Management Canvas LMS 

Organized Adobe Acrobat 

 

Affiliations 

● UCCI (University of California Curriculum Integration):  Advisory Board member, Institute 

Facilitator, Mentor Teacher, and conference presenter 

● English Department Chairperson - 2010 to 2015 

● Coordinator Biomedical Careers Academy 2016 - present 

● Leadership Team Member, Student Leadership, Biomedical Careers Academy 2008 - 2015 

● Head Softball Coach 

● BTSA Support Provider 

● Mentor Teacher of new teachers and interns 

● Master Teacher mentoring Student Teachers 



● PAR Committee Member 2012-2016 (helped develop program including designing 

collaboration, interviewing teacher mentors, and review of program process) 

● PRSSC (Parks, Recreation, and Social Services Commission) Commissioner - Lawndale, CA 

2010 - present 
 

CERTIFICATIONS 

● RIAP/ERWC (Reading Institute for Academic Preparation with Expository Reading and 

Writing Curriculum) - sponsored by CSUDH/CA Department of Education 

● Adaptive Schools Training 

● UCCI Institute Facilitator 

● CPR Certified 







Jessica Martinez 
 

 
EDUCATION 

 
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration Graduation:  December 2017 
California State University, Dominguez Hills, CA 
 

EXPERIENCE 

 
Magnetic Component Engineering, Torrance, CA  
Lead Internal Auditor (40 hours/week)                                                                                              November 2017 – June 2018 

 Performed objective system and process audits in line with statutory and regulatory requirements 

 Evaluated operational processes within the organization that measured effectiveness among departments 

 Managed a 5-person team that performed substantive testing and documentation of internal controls  

 Coordinated and implemented required controls of production processes to improve product lead times 

 Prepared department teams and managers for the transition of the revised quality management system (AS9100) 

 Analyzed and compiled data to create over 100 standard operating procedures used to comply with regulations 
 
Product Supply Specialist (40 hours/week) November 2015 – December 2017 

 Reviewed trends, overhead, labor, and material to provide pricing on products to over 50 clients a week 

 Developed professional and written skills by collaborating with sales, engineering, and manufacturing groups 

 Created 10-15 daily proposal requests for customized assemblies that were used for potential clients 

 Provided sales support by preparing cost and budget analysis on various aerospace projects 

 Gathered and prioritized invoicing requests to process payments to vendor contracts with production deadlines 
 
Production Planner (40 hours/week)  March 2011 – November 2015 

 Approved and implemented customer requirements through the company’s own ERP system 

 Processed and scheduled 5-10 customer work orders a day by analyzing several department’s inputs 

 Handled all aspects of production planning dealing with internal and external customers 

 Created and distributed manufacturing process control sheets out to the production floor for multiple deadlines 

 Monitored 10-30 production activities a day including shipping and delivery dates to customers 
 

TECHNICAL SKILLS 

 
Programming: HTML, JavaScript, and CSS 
Certifications: AS9100 Internal Auditor Certification 
Applications: Microsoft Office (Word, Excel, Access, PowerPoint, Outlook), Adobe Acrobat, Sage Business Works 
IS/IT Courses: Info Sys/Tech Fundamentals, Info Sys Theory and Practice, Internet Literacy, Systems Analysis and Design 
Other: Lean manufacturing, six sigma, continuous improvement, capable of creating standard operating procedures for 
companies, communicative, cooperative with others, self-centralized 
 

LANGUAGES 

 
Languages: Fluent in English and Spanish (written, spoken, and translation) 



Patricia Moeses-Flores  

   

Hawthorne, CA 90250  

 

To whom it may concern:  

 

I have known Jessica Martinez for 11 years and it is with great pleasure that I serve as a 

reference on her application for City Clerk.  I have personally witnessed Jessica’s strengths 

through the years in a variety of settings and I firmly believe that her many qualities and skillsets 

would make her an asset to the City Clerk Department.  

 

In the many years I have known Jessica, she has demonstrated reliability and resourcefulness in 

everything she does. She is an individual who is always timely and prepared. For example,  

Jessica is known to be the most organized when participating in a friend gathering. She maintains 

the use of a personal planner and offers her organizational skills to help ensure that events are 

efficiently planned. She thinks ahead to what we may need and she is always the first person to 

arrive and offer support. Jessica is always ready with a genuine care and concern for the success 

of any activity she participates in.   

 

To further attest to Jessica’s character, her commitment in her role as a mother is admirable and 

inspiring. For the last two years, Jessica has been fully committed to her daughter’s 

development. She has sought the best practices for caring for her daughter’s growth. Like with 

anything she does, Jessica is organized and thinks ahead.  Most importantly, she is a role model 

to those around her with the care she shows her daughter and the resilience she has demonstrated 

with this new chapter in her life.   

 

There are many more qualities and examples I could give about Jessica’s personal character. It is 

with confidence that I recommend her for the City Clerk position. If you have any questions or 

would like to discuss this reference further, please feel free to email me or call me.  

 

Sincerely,  

 

Patricia Moeses-Flores  

 

  

 





Resolution No. CC-2101-003 
Appointment to Fill Vacancy in Office of City Clerk 1 

RESOLUTION NO. CC-2101-003 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 

FILLING A VACANCY IN THE OFFICE OF 
CITY CLERK BY APPOINTMENT 

WHEREAS, Rhonda Hofmann Gorman was elected to serve as a member of the City Council on 
November 3, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, at the time she was sworn into office as a member the City Council, Ms. Hofmann 
Gorman had served two years of a four-year term as the elected City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, 
thereby leaving the Office of City Clerk vacant; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Government Code Section 36512 and Lawndale Municipal 
Code Section 2.16.045, when a vacancy in the Office of City Clerk occurs, the City Council shall either 
fill the vacancy by appointment or call a special election to fill the vacancy; and 

WHEREAS, on December 7, 2020, the City Council decided to fill the vacancy by appointment; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City Council directed staff to solicit applications from persons eligible to hold 
elective office in the City of Lawndale; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council established an application deadline of January 13, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council directed staff to place the matter of appointing a City Clerk on the 
agenda of its January 19, 2021 meeting, at which time applicants would be required to submit to an 
interview by the City Council to be considered for appointment; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council interviewed all qualified applicants at its January 19, 2021 meeting 
and determined which of the applicants should be appointed to fill the vacant Office of City Clerk. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The City Council hereby appoints __________ to the Office of City Clerk for an 
approximately two-year term to expire upon the declaration of results of the 2022 General Municipal 
Election. 

SECTION 2. Pursuant to California Government Code Section 1777, after filing the official oath 
of office, ___________ shall possess all the rights and powers, and will be subject to the same liabilities, 
duties, and obligations, of the City Clerk. 

SECTION 3. Pursuant to Lawndale Municipal Code Section 2.16.010, the City Clerk shall 
receive as compensation the sum of three hundred fifty dollars per month. 



Resolution No. CC-2101-003 
Appointment to Fill Vacancy in Office of City Clerk 2 

 SECTION 4. Pursuant to City Council Resolution No. CC-9809-89, the City Clerk shall receive 
a monthly allowance in the same amount as the Central Management Group for flexible benefits, 
including (but not limited to) medical, dental, vision, life or retirement benefits, which otherwise are 
available to all city employees.  The allowance must be spent on flexible benefits, including (but not 
limited to) the maximum amount allowable under an Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457(b) plan 
or life insurance, which otherwise are available to all City employees. 
 
 SECTION 4. Immediately upon the approval and passage of this Resolution, ___________ shall 
take the Oath of Office. 
 
 SECTION 5. Immediately upon being sworn into the Office of City Clerk, _________ shall be 
seated and assume the duties of the City Clerk. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of January, 2021. 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 



Resolution No. CC-2101-003 
Appointment to Fill Vacancy in Office of City Clerk 3 

ATTEST: 
 
State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale  ) 
 
I, Matthew Ceballos, Assistant City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the 
City Council of the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. CC-2101-
003 at a regular meeting of said Council held on the 19th day of January, 2021, by the following roll call 
vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor      
Pat Kearney, Mayor Pro Tem      
Bernadette Suarez      
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman      
Sirley Cuevas      

 
 
_________________________________ 
Matthew Ceballos, Assistant City Clerk 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Tiffany J. Israel, City Attorney 



14



15



16


	21-01-19 reg.agn
	01. Quarterly Investment Report
	02. Disposal of Surplus Property
	03. First Amendm Street Sweeping
	04. Statement of Costs 14412 Mansel Ave
	05. Warrants
	06. 20-12-07 reg.min
	07. 21-01-11 sp.min
	08. Projects for the Fiscal Year 21-22 CDBG
	09. Website Redesign
	10. Touchless Automatic Sliding Doors
	11. City Council Subcommittees
	12. Safe and Sane Fireworks
	13. Filling the Vacancy in the Office of City Clerk
	14. Councilmembers Attendance
	15. Closed Session Legal Counsel
	16. Closed Session Public Employee Appointment

	Button1: 


